Public Document Pack

Committee Agenda
City of Westminster
Title:
Meeting Date:
Time:
Venue:
Members:

Cabinet
Monday 19th April, 2021
6.30 pm
This will be a virtual meeting
Councillors:
Rachael Robathan (Chairman)
Heather Acton
Timothy Barnes
Melvyn Caplan

Matthew Green
David Harvey
Tim Mitchell
Paul Swaddle, OBE

This will be a virtual meeting and members of the public and
press are welcome to follow the meeting and listen to
discussion to Part 1 of the Agenda.
This meeting will be live streamed and recorded.
To access the recording after the meeting please revisit the
link.
If you require any further information, please contact the
Committee Officer, Reuben Segal, Head of Committee and
Governance Services.
Email: rsegal@westminster.gov.uk; Tel: 07890 380137
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions they should contact
the Director of Law in advance of the meeting please.

AGENDA
PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)
1.

WELCOME
To note any changes to the membership

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive declarations by Members and Officers of the
existence and nature of any pecuniary interests or any other
significant interest in matters on this agenda.

3.

MINUTES

(Pages 3 - 12)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 15 February
2021.
4.

OXFORD STREET DISTRICT - UPDATE

(Pages 13 - 28)

Report of the Executive Director, Growth, Planning and Housing
5.

CHILDREN'S SERVICES UPDATE ON KEY ISSUES AND
DEVELOPMENTS
Report of the Bi Borough Executive Director of Children's
Services

6.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS
URGENT

Stuart Love
Chief Executive
9 April 2021

(Pages 29 - 42)

Agenda Item 3

MINUTES
CITY OF WESTMINSTER

Cabinet
MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
Minutes of a virtual meeting of the Cabinet held on Monday 15th February, 2021,
Members Present: Councillors Rachael Robathan (Chairman), Heather Acton,
Timothy Barnes, Melvyn Caplan, Matthew Green, David Harvey, Tim Mitchell and
Paul Swaddle, OBE
Also Present: Councillor Gotz Mohindra (Item 4)

1

MEMBERSHIP

1.1

It was noted that there were no changes to the membership.

2

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

2.1

There were no Declarations of Interest.

3

MINUTES

3.1

RESOLVED: The Leader, with the consent of the Members present, signed
the minutes of the meetings held on 14 December 2020 as a true and correct
record of the proceedings.

4

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2021-22 TO 2023-24

4.1

Councillor Paul Swaddle, Cabinet Member for Finance and Smart City,
introduced the report which outlined how over the next three years the council
will meet the key objectives under the refreshed City for All strategy,
supported by a medium-term financial plan.

4.2

Councillor Swaddle summarised the revenue challenges and efficiency
savings to deliver a balanced budget for 2021-2022 whilst also providing
opportunities for investment in community services such as Westminster
Connects and Adult and Children’s Services.

4.3

The Cabinet Member highlighted that the proposals for a balanced budget for
2021/22, would include a total council tax rise of 3.5% that consists of a
general increase of 0.5% and a Social Care precept rise of the allowed 3%.

Page 3

1

This would be achieved whilst maintaining the Council Tax Reduction Scheme
which would mean that those residents who are least able to pay would not be
liable for council tax under the scheme. At Band D this will result in an annual
increase of £15.69 or an equivalent weekly amount of 30.2p per week. The
total Westminster element of council tax will therefore rise from £448.21 to
£463.90 at Band D.
4.4

After a balanced budget in 2021-22 the Cabinet Member stated that the
medium term financial plan forecasts a net budget gap in 2022-23 and 202324 as set out in the report where there would be a need to identify further
savings whilst minimising, as far as possible, any impact on council services.

4.5

The Cabinet Member highlighted a small error in Appendix 6 to the report
where the council tax figures had been accidentally rounded down by 1p.
This had been amended and a revised Appendix 6 had been published on the
council’s website.

4.6

Gerald Almeroth, Executive Director, Finance and Resources, highlighted the
summary change in the general fund budget which included a net increase of
£2.8m against last year. He explained that the small increase was due to the
uncertainty over future grant funding, additional expenditure pressures and
reduced income due to long term impact from Covid 19.

4.7

Councillor Gotz Mohindra addressed the committee in his capacity as the
Chairman of the Budget Task Group which had considered budget options
and draft business plan and estimates at the appropriate stages in the
business planning cycle and submitted recommendations and comments to
the Cabinet. He summarised the outcome of the task group’s review which
had identified a number of positive indicators including that the council has a
robust reserves policy and that the budget includes flexibility to mitigate
uncertainties. The task group recognised that the delay of the fair funding
review could have a potential significant impact on the council’s future
revenue budget. He commented that some savings were to be delivered
through staff reductions and that the task group had received explanations
from Cabinet Members about mitigations for minimising the loss of corporate
knowledge and experience. He concluded that the task group considered the
budget proposals to be robust.

4.8

The Leader of the Council expressed her gratitude to the Cabinet Member, his
predecessor, Councillor Caplan and Mr Almeroth and his team for their hard
work in preparing the medium term financial plan.
RESOLVED:
That Cabinet recommends to full Council:
Council Tax
1.

That the council tax for a Band D property be agreed at £463.90 for
2021/22, an increase of £13.45 (3%) for the Social Care precept and
£2.24 (0.5%) for general purposes;

Page 4

2

2.

That, subject to the consideration of the previous recommendation, the
council tax for the City of Westminster, excluding the Montpelier
Square area and Queen’s Park Community Council, for the year
ending 31 March 2022, be as specified in the Council Tax Resolution in
Appendix 6 to the report.

3.

That the Precepts and Special Expenses be as also specified in
Appendix 6 to the report for properties in Montpelier Square and the
Queen’s Park Community Council;

4.

That the formal resolution for 2021/22 attached at Appendix 6 to the
report including the council tax requirement of £62.078m be agreed;

5.

Noted the proposed Greater London Authority precept (Band D) of
£363.66, an increase of £31.59 rise in the adjusted Band D Precept;

6.

That the Council continues the Westminster Community Contribution to
allow the most expensive (Band H) properties in the City to voluntarily
contribute towards supporting discretionary services that support the
three priorities of youth services, helping rough sleepers off the streets
and supporting people who are lonely and isolated.

Revenue Budget
1

That the views of the Budget Task Group set out in Appendix 7 to the
report be noted.

2

That the proposed General Fund net budget requirement of £182.745m
summarised in Appendix 4 to the report be noted.

3

That the savings and growth proposals for 2021/22 to 2023/24 set out
in Appendix 1 2 and 3 to the report be approved;

4

That the Equality Impact Assessments included in Appendix 5 to the
report be received and noted to inform the consideration of the budget;

5

That the Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 2021/22 and 30Year Housing Investment Plan presented concurrently to Cabinet on 15
February 2021 that recommends the HRA budget and rent levels for
2021/22 be noted.

Capital Programme
That the Capital Strategy 2021/22 to 2025/26, forecast position for 2020/21
and future years’ forecasts summarised up to 2034/35 report also presented
to Cabinet on 15 February 2021 that recommends the Council’s capital
programme and financing be noted.

Page 5

3

Reserves, Balances and Budget Estimates
1.

That the reserves policy as set out in section 13 be noted;

2.

That the views of the Section 151 Officer with regards to estimates
underpinning the proposed budget changes and reserves levels in
section 13 be noted.

Treasury Management and Investment Framework
1.

2.

That the Treasury Management Strategy for 2021/22 including the
annual investment strategy, borrowing limits and prudential indicators
summarised in this report and set out detail in a concurrent report on
this agenda be noted.
That the 2021/22 Integrated Investment Framework report also
concurrently on this agenda, which sets out the policies and framework
for future investment decisions for the Council be noted.

Reason for Decision:
The preparation of the budget is the final stage of the annual business
planning cycle leading to the approval of the Council Tax for the forthcoming
financial year. There is a statutory requirement to set a balanced budget and
submit budget returns to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government (MHCLG). Approval of the revenue estimates constitutes
authority for the incurring of expenditure in accordance with approved policies.
5

CAPITAL STRATEGY 2021/22 TO 2025/26, FORECAST POSITION FOR
2020/21 AND FUTURE YEARS' FORECASTS SUMMARISED UP TO
2034/35

5.1

Councillor Paul Swaddle, Cabinet Member for Finance and Smart City,
introduced the report which set out the proposed capital strategy over the next
15 years which included key strategic deliverables in line with the City for All
strategy including the Oxford Street District scheme, housing regeneration
and maintenance of operational assets.

5.2

Gerald Almeroth highlighted that the development projects and schemes are
subject to capital bid assessments covering a number of categories including
strategic fit, finances, external factors and risk and are subject to robust
governance processes via the Capital Review Group.

5.3

Councillor Green, Cabinet Member for Business, Licensing and Planning
stated that the proposed capital strategy would enable the council to continue
to invest in the borough so that Westminster remains a vibrant and exciting
place for others to invest in. He identified the Strand/Aldwych Public Realm
scheme as an example where the council had delivered a scheme early
despite the challenges presented by Covid19. He also commented on the
significant achievements that the council had delivered as part of the Smart
City portfolio.

Page 6

4

5.4

Councillor Tim Barnes, Cabinet Member for Young People and Learning
highlighted the achievements despite the significant challenges this year
which included the delivery of the King Solomon Academy.

5.5

Councillor Tim Mitchell, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Public
Health spoke about the delivery of Beechcroft House development a state-ofthe-art 84 bed care home in Maida Vale which had opened according to
schedule in September. This had released the previous sites at Westmead
and Carlton Dene care homes for re-development which will provide future
benefits for older people living in the borough.
RESOLVED: That Cabinet recommended that full Council:
1.

Approve the capital strategy as set out in this report.

2.

Approve the capital expenditure for the General Fund as set out in
Appendix A to the report for 2021/22 to 2025/26 and future years to
2034/35.

3.

Approve that all development and investment projects, along with all
significant projects follow the previously approved business case
governance process as set out in section 8 to the report.

4.

Approve that no financing sources, unless stipulated in regulations or
necessary agreements, are ring fenced.

5.

Approve the council plans to continue its use of capital receipts to fund
the revenue costs of eligible proposals (subject to full business cases
for each project). This comes under the MHCLG Guidance on the
Flexible Use of Capital Receipts (FCR).
Approve the proposed financing of the capital programme and revenue
implications as set out in section 13 to the report.

6.

7.

Approve the financing of the capital programme being delegated to the
Executive Director of Finance and Resources to provide sufficient
flexibility to allow for the most effective use of Council resources

Reasons for Decision:
The Council is required to set a revenue and capital budget. The revenue
budget is set as part of the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP), where the
capital budget is set as part of this strategy document.
Capital expenditure is defined as expenditure that is predominantly incurred
on buying, constructing or improving physical assets such as land, buildings,
infrastructure and equipment.
The Council is required to set a balanced revenue budget, and the capital
programme forms part of this process.

Page 7

5

6

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BUSINESS PLAN

6.1

Councillor David Harvey, Cabinet Member for Housing, introduced the report.
which outlined the council’s Housing Investment Plan and 30 year Housing
Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan. He highlighted the council’s work in
the next year and beyond on fire safety management following a number of
fundamental Government policy decisions and potential legislative processes
in progress as set out in section 6 of the report. He drew Cabinet’s attention
to the planned maintenance programme in section 8 of the report which
included a budget provision for the council’s best current assessment of what
actions will be required. He thanked the council’s housing officers for their
work.

6.2

Councillor Heather Acton, Cabinet Member for Community Services and
Regeneration referred to the council’s ambitious regeneration schemes and
highlighted the Beechcroft House Development as an example of a Housing
our Ageing Population Panel for Innovation (HAPPI) scheme that incorporates
future-proofing for residents as they grow older as well as contributing to the
council’s commitment to reducing carbon emissions. She thanked her
predecessor, Councillor Caplan, for his work on delivering the council’s
regeneration priorities to date.
RESOLVED: That Cabinet recommended that full Council:
1.

Approve the HRA revenue budget for 2021-22 (Table 2 and Appendix
3 to the report).

2.

Note the HRA 5-year revenue budgets for 2021-22 to 2025-26 (Table 2
and Appendix 2 to the report).

3.

Note the HRA 30-year revenue budgets for 2021-22 to 2050-51
(Appendix 3 to the report).

4.

Approve the HRA 5-year Capital Programme for a total of £952.30m
(Appendix 4 to the report).

5.

Note the 30-year Capital Programme for 2021-22 to 2050-51 (Appendix
4 to the report).

6.

Note a rent increase of 1.5% from April 2021 as applicable under the
Welfare Reform and Work Act 2016.

7.

Note the HRA reserves and balances for the 5-year Business Plan
(Table 6 to the report).

Reasons for Decision:
1.

Section 76 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 requires
Local Authorities with a Housing Revenue Account (HRA) to set a
budget for the account, which is based on best assumptions, that
avoids a deficit and keeps the HRA under review.

Page 8

6

2.

The budget has developed from a review of the baseline budget,
current expenditure on Housing services and capital investment to
maintain, improve and expand the Housing Stock.

3.

The report outlines how the HRA is facilitating the City Council’s
commitment to provide 1,850 affordable homes through various HRA
resources, including the use of the AHF, Capital Receipts, GLA Grant
Funding and HRA Borrowing, as well as ensuring that the Council
supports vibrant communities, in line with City for All, by investing over
£2.092bn in existing Council homes over the next 30 years.

7

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2021-22 TO 2025-26

7.1

Gerald Almeroth, Executive Director for Finance and Resources, introduced
the report that set out the council’s proposed Treasury Management Strategy
Statement for the period 2021/22 to 2025/26 ensuring that plans are prudent,
affordable and sustainable and that risks are managed responsibly and that
cash balances are appropriately invested to generate optimum returns having
regard to security and liquidity of capital.
RESOLVED: The Cabinet recommend that full Council:
1.

Approve the Treasury Management Strategy Statement;

2.

Approve the borrowing strategy and borrowing limits for 2021/22 to
2025/26 set out in section 6 to the report.

3.

Approve the Prudential Indicators set out in section 8 to the report.

4.

Approve the Annual Investment Strategy and approved investments
set out in Appendix 1 to the report.

5.

Approve the Minimum Revenue Provision Policy set out in Appendix 2
to the report.

Reason for Decision:
To comply with the Local Government Act 2003, other regulations and
guidance and to ensure that the Council’s borrowing and investment plans
are prudent, affordable and sustainable and comply with statutory
requirements.
8

INTEGRATED INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK 2021-22

8.1

Gerald Almeroth, Executive Director for Finance and Resources introduced
the report which outlined proposals for the Integrated Investment Framework
for 2021/2022.

8.2

Mr Almeroth stated that the integrated investment framework sets out the
strategic approach for bringing together and managing all of the Council’s
investments in a prudent manner.

Page 9

7

RESOLVED: The Cabinet recommended that full Council:
1.

Approve and implement the Integrated Investment Framework set out
in the report;

2.

Approve that the target for the overall return on Council investments
should aspire to at least match inflation;

3.

Approve that the benefits of investing in the Pension Fund should be
used as a benchmark when evaluating other investments;

4.

Adopt the asset allocation percentages set out in the framework and
work towards achieving these;

5.

Agree that the overarching objective of this framework is to achieve an
overall return on Council investments aspiring to match inflation and to
reduce costs and liabilities, whilst maintaining adequate cash balances
for operational purposes, and not exposing the capital value of
investments to unnecessary risk;

6.

Approve that strategic investments allocated to out-of-borough property
developments should be considered individually and should outweigh
the benefits of investing in-borough (which can have a number of noncommercial benefits, e.g., place making) and in a diversified property
portfolio (acquisitions will be made out of borough only on an
exceptional basis). Individual decisions should be subject to Cabinet
Member approval;

7.

Approve that the property and alternative asset allocation should focus
on in-borough, with out of borough options being explored on an
exceptional basis and subject to Cabinet Member approval;

8,

Approve the Investment Executive to implement and monitor the
investment strategy.

9

PAY POLICY 2021-22

9.1

Lee Witham, Director of People Services, introduced the report which set out
details of the Council’s annual pay policy for 2021-2022.

9.2

He advised that there were two minor changes proposed in the report to the
Pay Policy compared to last year. He advised in respect of the first, which
related to the government’s reforms to public sector exit payments and the
cap on payments, that since the report was published the Government had
withdrawn the legislation following concerns that it has a number of
unintended consequences. Therefore, the cap would be disapplied until new
legislation is introduced.

9.3

Mr Witham then summarised the minor change to the “Rewarding your
Contribution” scheme which he considered would provide a more equitable
distribution of reward amongst staff.

Page 10

8

9.4

The Leader thanked Mr Witham and the Chief Executive for the additional
care shown to staff following the current challenges brought on by the
pandemic which were evident by the results from the most recent staff survey.
RESOLVED:
That the council be recommended to approve the Pay Policy for 2021 – 2022
attached as Appendix 1 to the report subject to the omission of the public
sector cap on exit payments.
Reasons for Decision
1.

The Council is required to publish its Pay Policy by 31st March every
year.

2.

The Pay Policy brings together all the Council’s existing policies on pay
and must include details in relation to: all aspects of Chief Officer’s
remuneration, increases and additions to remuneration, bonuses,
termination payments and remuneration on recruitment.

3.

It must also include information about the relationship between the
remuneration of its highest paid officer (the Chief Executive) and the
median salary of all employees (the “pay multiple”).

4.

Government’s reforms to public sector exit payments (i.e. to cap exit
payments at £95,000 and recover exit payments for employees earning
£80,000 plus) were due to come into effect from Autumn 2016. However,
they were delayed and are now expected to be implemented sometime
in 2020. The Pay Policy for 2021-2022 will be amended if this takes
place.

5.

All pay data in the Pay Policy will use the snapshot date of 31st
March 2019.

The Meeting ended at 7.41pm

CHAIRMAN:

DATE

Page 11

9

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4

Cabinet Report

Date:

19 April 2021

Classification:

General Release

Title:

Oxford Street District – Project update

Wards Affected:

West End, Bryanston and Dorset Square,
Marylebone High Street and Hyde Park

City for All Summary

The Oxford Street District Scheme supports the
key pillars of City for All, particularly the new
Thriving Economy pillar by leveraging the
Council's significant investment in the Scheme
to transform the heart of the West End and
Westminster’s retail, cultural and hospitality
economy and to test low carbon economic
growth and development.

Key Decision:

For information only

Financial Summary:

For information only

Report of:

Debbie Jackson, Executive Director, Growth,
Planning and Housing
Elad Eisenstein, Programme Director for
Oxford Street District

Page 13

1.

Executive Summary

1.1

Following a public consultation exercise, Cabinet approved the Oxford Street
District (OSD) Place Strategy and Delivery Plan on 25th February 2019. A
business case was developed and approved by Cabinet in April 2019 setting
out the justification for the Council’s investment.

1.2

The case for change is now even more compelling. A rapidly changing retail
environment, the arrival of the Elizabeth Line and, most recently, the Covid-19
pandemic, pose new challenges as well as opportunities.

1.3

Westminster City Council recognises the need for a coordinated district-wide
approach during these critical times. Action is urgently needed to ensure the
programme adequately addresses immediate community and economic
needs, lays the foundations for a sustainable recovery and adaptation to the
emerging context, as well as ensure that the district remains globally
competitive in the years ahead.

1.4

From the start of the pandemic, the council has engaged with local residents,
businesses and partners to understand the impacts of Covid-19, both in the
local area as well as on the economy of central London more broadly. We
have also looked internationally to understand better how other cities are
responding to the immediate challenges of the pandemic while identifying new
opportunities for long term improvement and resilience. This has informed the
Council’s development of appropriate plans and initiatives, responding
proactively to the new opportunities and challenges of today, as well as
preparing for the future.

1.5

In February 2021, the Council has launched the new Oxford Street District
(OSD) Framework, delivering an ambitious and meaningful vision for the area
that captures the values and needs of communities, residents and visitors and
setting a roadmap for delivery.

1.6

The framework has been developed in partnership with key stakeholders.
Effective collaboration between public and private sectors will create
opportunities to leverage major investments in the area, maximising public
benefits.

1.7

The ambitious new plans reaffirm the council’s commitment to the Oxford
Street District, with 2021 being ‘the year of delivery’.

1.8

The February 2021 OSD launch included the following statements:



A bold vision to deliver a successful future for the nation’s high street, as
the greenest, smartest, most sustainable district of its kind, anywhere in
the world.
See spades in the ground in early 2021 to kick start the year of delivery in
an overarching 10-year plan.

Page 14




1.9

Restore the area as the must-visit destination of choice for domestic and
international visitors when restrictions ease, through a range of intensive,
interim improvements on Oxford Street.
A strong boost for the visitor economy with immediate improvements,
including a bold, new ‘March Arch Hill’ visitor attraction to be a catalyst for
the district to climb back to global acclaim and success.

In March 2021, following a 4-week engagement process, the council began
delivering the first phase of the Oxford Street temporary public realm
improvement scheme.

1.10 Interventions as part of the temporary scheme will be deliver a greener Oxford
Street with significantly extended footways, pocket parks, new bespoke street
furniture, banners and feature lighting. When completed, the designs will bring
to the district 40% more trees, over 1500 new plants from 65 species and
double the amount of seating. The works will be delivered in phases, between
April and late Spring, with Phase 1 ready for hospitality reopening by 12 April.
1.11 All interventions as part of the temporary public realm scheme are delivered
via a Temporary Traffic Order (TTO) for 18 months.
1.12 Another key intervention for 2021 is Marble Arch Hill. This new temporary
visitor attraction is proposed as part of the council’s response to reactivating
the Oxford Street District. The 24m high climbable hill will create a new visitor
experience in the West End and deliver sweeping views of Oxford Street,
Hyde Park and surrounding areas.
1.13 The project got planning approval on 30 March 2021 and is now progressing
towards delivery in the summer. It is expected to open to public in the
summer, for a period of 6 months. Subject to social distancing and the
appropriate guidance, the project is expected to attract approximately 200,000
visitors, generating significant cumulative spend in the area.
2.

Recommendation

2.1

Cabinet to endorse Oxford Street District (OSD) framework and delivery plans
for 2021, acknowledging the significant progress made over the past 6
months.

3.

Reason for Decision

3.1

The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the Oxford Street District has been
significant. The area has seen a dramatic drop in footfall and a growing
number of business closures, some permanent.

3.2

In these unprecedented times, doing nothing is not an option.

3.3

The council remains committed to deliver its plans for the district. The
pandemic presents a once-in-a-lifetime opportunity to address the big
challenges ahead and at the same time support the aspirations of local

Page 15

communities, reinforcing the district’s status as a global exemplar and cultural,
leisure and economic powerhouse.
4.

Progress to Date

4.1

Since the approval of the Oxford Street District business case in April 2019,
design had been progressed on key work packages across the district and
been informed by the subsequent development of the OSD Framework this
year.
COVID Impact

4.2

With a large proportion of the area’s workforce continuing to work from home
and with international tourism on hold, it seems likely the challenges of the
pandemic will continue to impact the area and throughout 2021 and beyond.

4.3

Alongside the huge costs of the pandemic, there is an urgent need to support
businesses and communities and there are opportunities to innovate, trial and
test solutions quickly, which would otherwise take a long time to develop.
Additionally, there is now the opportunity to take a long-term view on the big
questions highlighted by the pandemic. These include issues of health and
wellbeing, mobility, density, living and working in central London and how to
maximise the value of investment in infrastructure in the area.
Framework Document

4.4

Developed in full partnership with key stakeholders, the framework for the
Oxford Street District sets out a comprehensive programme of improvements,
which will enhance the district in its entirety: as a global destination alongside
thriving residential neighbourhoods, with successful businesses and an
unrivalled visitor experience. The framework responds to long-standing
opportunities and challenges as well as the significant new ones presented by
the pandemic, capitalising on this moment to strengthen the district's worldrenowned status as a great place to live, work and visit.

4.5

Delivery of the Oxford Street District is already underway, with major public
realm interventions in progress. The framework ensures that this ambitious
programme continues, and is accelerated where most needed, with strategic
focus in key areas and workstreams, to enable the urgent recovery of the
West End and begin the longer-term transformation of the area.

4.6

The Framework is not a stand-alone document. It builds on previous work by
the council and should be read in conjunction with the OSD Place Strategy,
approved in February 2019, and the Westminster City Plan which sets out the
conditions around which this Framework operates.

Page 16

Engagement
4.7

A comprehensive engagement process with members, key partners, resident
groups and other stakeholders has taken place prior to the launch of the
framework. This included:




Ward members
OSD Strategic partnership
Core resident groups and neighbourhood forums, including:
Marylebone Association
Mayfair Residents Group
Residents Association of Mayfair and St James
Fitzrovia Neighbourhood Association
WECN
Soho Neighbourhood Forum
Mayfair neighbourhood Forum
Marylebone Neighbourhood forum
FitzWest






GLA family (TfL, GLA)
BIDs (NWEC, HOLBA, BSQ, Marble Arch, North Bank)
NWEC Board / Oxford Street Group
Key retailers (Selfridges, M&S, John Lewis)

5.

Delivery Plan for 2021

5.1

Whilst progress has been made on the delivery of the OSD programme, the
Framework ensures that this level of ambition continues, and is accelerated
where most needed, to enable the urgent recovery of the West End and kickstart the longer-term transformation of the area.
The Framework includes a comprehensive delivery plan for 2021. It is
underpinned by 8 workstreams as illustrated below:
5.1.1

Zero Carbon Demonstrator
Accelerate the delivery of zero-carbon projects commencing with a
pilot project within the district to demonstrate the council’s
commitment to cleaner air, more efficient freight and servicing, and
sustainable movement. This will see the council deliver:





Public realm improvements that support active mobility and
community uses
Smart freight and servicing networks and services
Upscale EV charging infrastructure
Prioritise cleaner modes and vehicles

Page 17

Progress made since framework launch:
The council is currently making good progress on these proposals,
with phase 1 expected to be delivered before the end of 2021.
5.1.2

Marble Arch Centre
Work with stakeholders and landowners, as part of the three centres
approach (e.g. Marble Arch, Oxford Circus and East Oxford Street), to
progress delivery of a fully integrated and attractive centre at Marble
Arch. Key outcomes:





Short-term catalyst projects to showcase the level of ambition
and reopen the city post-pandemic
Connect the western end of Oxford Street with Hyde Park
Coherent public realm worthy of a global destination
Significant developments to provide more homes, jobs and
diversity of uses

Progress made since framework launch:
Marble Arch Hill received planning approval on 30 March 2021 and is
expected to open to public in summer 2021.
The delivery of the Marble Arch Hill will comprise two main packages,
including but not limited to:
a)

Design and construction, fit-out, maintenance of the structure as
well as any necessary coordination with stakeholders to facilitate
any traffic diversions or other temporary infrastructure to support
the project. It will also include decommission and removal of the
temporary structures at the end of the Project.

b)

Operations and event management including but not limited to
event security, ticketing, booking and payment systems, meet
and greet staffing, communications and public relations,
possibly operation of a light refreshments facility, cleaning and
staff welfare facilities.
Full details on the projects’ design, commission, construction
and operation are provided as part of a separate CMR dated
22 March 2021.
The Marble Arch Hill project includes a significant legacy
element. This includes a permanent power supply provided to
the site in support of future events as well as trees and planting
which will be reused across the district. Works on defining the
longer term transformation of the area are in design stages and
will capitalise on the improvements to the area made
throughout 2021.

Page 18

5.1.3

Laneways Programme
Public realm catalyst projects that can be delivered without major
district-wide enabling works - providing maximum value in the short to
medium term. Key outcomes:




Two key laneway schemes constructed in 2021
Four remaining laneways to be delivered throughout 2022/23
Maximise the value of local character and ambitions for the
identified spaces in collaboration with stakeholders

Progress made since framework launch:
A detailed delivery programme for laneways is underway. The first OSD
permanent scheme, Soho Photography Quarter, started on site on 22
March, with Phase 1 expected to complete by the summer. Additional
laneways are in design stages and are on track for delivery in 2022.
5.1.4

Greenways Programme
A network of green routes connecting neighbourhoods, garden squares
and parks, by providing safe, comfortable, sustainable, and attractive
streets for walking and cycling. Key outcomes:




An east-west route to the north of Oxford Street from Edgware
Road to Foley Street delivered by 2022
An east-west route to the south of Oxford Street connecting
Hyde Park to Soho, constructed by the end of 2023
A north-south route connecting Fitzrovia and Soho delivered in
2022

Progress made since framework launch:
Designs and delivery of greenways progressing to plan with works to
start on site in 2022.
5.1.5

Oxford Street Showcase
Deliver immediate improvements to Oxford Street and adjacent streets
as a springboard for wider recovery and acceleration of major schemes
along the district’s main spine. Temporary improvements to provide a
trial ahead of permanent scheme delivery. Key outcomes:





Increased footway space by mid-2021 to enable safe, distanced
access to the district and its businesses
Work with partners to further advance Oxford Circus plans and
enabling works in 2021
Provide additional greenery, cycle parking and seating
Introduce pocket parks on adjacent streets

Page 19

Progress made since framework launch:
Work has started on the first phase of the temporary public realm
improvement scheme on Oxford Street. The scheme will deliver
significant improvements to Oxford Street which include wider
pavements, new street furniture, more trees and planting, lighting
features and pocket parks.
The scheme is delivered via a Temporary Traffic Order (TTO) for a
period of 18 months and will provide much needed improvement to the
appearance and operational aspects of the district, supporting
businesses, residents and visitors returning to the area.
First phase of the highways works is expected to complete by 11th April,
in time for the reopening of leisure and hospitality on 12th April.
5.1.6

World’s first ‘District as a service’ offering - implement a district-wide
business scale- Business Scale-up up programme to support local
start-ups and attract new businesses to the district. Trial and test
innovative uses of enterprise spaces to contribute to a more resilient,
inclusive and thriving local economy. Key outcomes:




Attractive packages for local businesses, start-ups and
international firms, attracting and retaining them in the district
District-wide curation of vacant spaces with full scale-up capacity
Flexible accommodation options for a range of business uses

Progress made since framework launch:
The council is working closely partners on the development of a
business scale up and activation programmes across the West End.
This is a council-wide effort which involving various directorates across
WCC.
5.1.7

Diverse uses accelerator
Refresh the West End’s world-class experience by using spaces in new
ways that meet the changing needs of local communities, occupiers,
property owners and consumers, and are flexible in the face of
challenges such as Covid-19. Key outcomes:




Support innovative application of flexible new planning rules to
provide a greater mix of uses and activities
Explore options for a new major attraction on Oxford Street to
stimulate footfall and growth
Develop pioneering day and evening activities and opportunities

Progress made since framework launch:
The council has undertaken a high-level economics study for the district
to inform future scenarios. The study indicated that the nature of uses
within the West End will change significantly over the next 5-10 and
identified the need to create the appropriate conditions to support a
more varied mix of uses (such as leisure and culture), a growing

Page 20

residential demand and attract new types of businesses to the area.
Sustainability is also playing a key part in defining the attractiveness of
the district.
The council is working on strategies, initiatives and projects that
support changing needs of the district across areas including; new mix
of uses, active travel, public realm with more focus on play, arts and
culture, digital and smart infrastructure as well as sustainability and
tackling climate emergency.
5.1.8

Smart District
Deliver a world-leading activation programme that provides unique
experiences, transforms the look and feel of the area and kick-starts
wider economic recovery. Seamlessly integrate smart-city solutions to
enhance the overall experience of the district. Key outcomes:




Broker new partnerships to develop an exciting cultural programme
Trial and test longer term technology solutions for freight, waste
and mobility
Deliver an evening and night-time lighting scheme

Progress made since framework launch:
The smart district programme for OSD is making good progress with
feasibility work underway for various waste, mobility, freight and other
smart solutions for the district. Part of these will be delivered via the
Zero Carbon Demonstrator as part of a pilot and others in the longer
term.
As part of the programme, works are also progressing on an integrated
activation plan for 2021 which includes arts and culture, pop ups and
events. This is a cross council effort which will be delivered in
partnership with other stakeholders as well.
5.2 The detailed OSD delivery plan for 2021 is included in the Framework
document. This can be downloaded from the OSD website on:
https://osd.london/framework/
6.

Governance

6.1

Central to the delivery of the programme is a robust governance plan that
maximises collaboration within and beyond the Council. Set out below is the
governance programme for 2021.

Page 21

Group / Board
Delivery Board / Officer
Steering group

Leader’s OSD board

Role and level of engagement
Monthly project board meetings which are chaired by the
Programme Director for Oxford Street District and
attended by senior responsible officers from various
departments. The project board’s role is to:
 Fully integrate delivery across the council and other
external interfaces
 Monitor and approve any changes to the project
programme and reports;
 Exercise financial authority to support the project;
 Review risks, issues and exceptions and determine
appropriate course of action based on
recommendations from the Project Working
Group;
 Manage and co-ordinate private sector funding
mechanisms;
 Review, comment and approve the project
business case and economic case for investment;
 Regular monitoring of the project budget;
 Maintain overview of the communication strategy.
Monthly steering group meetings which are chaired by the
Leader and attended by Cllr Caplan, Green and Swaddle,
along with senior responsible officers. The Steering
Group:


Partnership board

Provide strategic direction for the project including
the agreed aspirations and outcomes;
 Agree the programme for the project and any
significant changes to key milestones;
 Make decisions on proposals and agree the
strategy for their implementation;
 Approve the projects delivered within the district;
 Agree the funding model for the delivery of the
project;
 Resolve issues raised by the Project Board
 Approve communications strategy and key
messaging relating to the project;
 Provide direction on possible impact this project
may have on other major projects;
 Align the strategic plans and processes of their
respective departments for the achievement of
agreed project outcomes;
 Provide authorisation to spend against budget
(formalised via a Cabinet Member report).
Monthly meetings which are chaired by the Leader, and
attended by Cllr Caplan senior responsible officers well as
key representatives of Primary Landowners. The
Partnership board:

Page 22




Ward Members




Residents, Neighbourhood
Forums and Amenity
Societies



Stakeholders including
BIDs, business
representatives and
landowners



6.2

Oversees strategic partnership actions to deliver
the project and various sub-programme initiatives
Aligns key interfaces, timeframes and budgets to
maximise outcomes from key aspects of the
projects
Create partnership to enable the delivery of key
aspects of the project
Bi-monthly updates to the ward members of the
affected wards;
Engagement with ward members will continue
during the design process.
Regular engagement with stakeholders. Further
engagement will be undertaken with stakeholders
during the design process to ensure their views are
taken on board. There will also be consultation on
individual schemes as they are progressed.
Regular newsletters will be issued to keep all
stakeholders updated on progress.
Regular engagement with stakeholders. Further
engagement will be undertaken with stakeholders
during the design process to ensure their views are
taken on board.

The Council is also engaging widely through its own digital platforms. These
include:


Westminster City Council Website: www.westimster.gov.uk/oxford-streetdistrict
This platform is being updated regularly as new project information
becomes available for engagement.



Oxford Street District Website: www.osd.london
This platform is regularly being updated to communicate new launches,
activities and events across the district. It also has the OSD framework
available for viewing and download.

7.

Staffing Implication

7.1

A Programme Director for the Oxford Street District has been appointed in
October 2020. The team includes 5 additional team members with two new
staff joining in April 2021.

7.2

The OSD programme is delivered as a council-wide effort with full
collaboration across all council’s directorates.

7.3

Clear governance structure sets out the interfaces required to deliver the
programme across all strands of work which require full integration across
planning, economics, highways, maintenance and management, etc.

Page 23

8.

Financial Implications
Capital Funding

8.1

Capital costs to deliver the plans as illustrated in this report for
21/22 including the Oxford Street Temporary Public Realm Improvement
scheme are estimated at £35m.

8.2

All delivery plan expenditure for 21/22 will be funded from the £150m
investment by the Council in the district. This was approved by Cabinet in
April 2019.

8.3

In April 2019, Cabinet also approved £21m of expenditure from the
£150m for design, surveys and other feasibility related work required for the
delivery of the programme.

8.4

The capital costs for the Oxford Street Temporary Public Realm
Improvement Scheme detailed in paragraph 5.1.5 are estimated at
£3.3m. This includes design, construction costs and professional fees as well
as risk and contingency.

8.5

The Cabinet Member responsible for Oxford Street District will approve
spend in accordance with Council financial regulations.

8.6

Any other Cabinet Members with an interest in the decision being taken will
be informed and consulted with as part of the approval process.

Revenue implications
8.7

A detailed management plan for the District going forward is currently being
developed. The Council is committed to maximising the use of existing
resources as well as contributions from partners to support the future vision
of the district.

9

Legal implications

9.1

The Director of Law has considered the contents of this report and doesn’t
have any other comments to add.

10

Consultation and Stakeholder Engagement

10.1

Stakeholder engagement for the OSD framework is illustrated in section 4.8 of
this report.

10.2 With regards to respective work packages, a master OSD stakeholder
engagement and communications plan has been prepared by MCJV and
approved by the Westminster Communications team. This document provides
an umbrella for all other projects delivered through the programme and will be
supplemented by locally specific plans, which refer to the particular

Page 24

circumstances of the spaces in question, including land- use and ownership,
stakeholders, etc.
11.

Equalities Implications

11.1

Diversity and Inclusion, in all respects, have been critical to the success of the
Oxford Street District and will continue to be in the future. The Oxford Street
Framework ensures there is a wide offering for all audiences.

11.2 All projects delivered within the OSD programme embed Diversity and
Inclusion principles from early stages of the design and up to delivery.
11.3 All OSD procurement related activities seek to maximise opportunities for
social value and promoting D&I through the procurement activity. Social value
criteria is included within the tender process for any consultant appointed to
work on the project.
11.4 Social value monitoring is undertaken for all schemes being implemented as
part of the programme.
11.5 Appointed OSD contractor MCJV are finalising their social value
implementation plan which will be reflected throughout the design and
construction of the project.
11.6 Each work package will develop an equality impact assessment to cover both
strategic and operational activities.
11.7 The OSD team is working with a wide range of groups (access groups, youth
groups, residents, etc) to develop designs that will not disadvantage any
protected group from enjoying Oxford Street District proposals.

Page 25

Background Papers
Oxford Street District – Project Approach, Cabinet Report and Decision, 9th July
2018.
Cabinet Member Report – Oxford Street Phase 1, 5th October 2018.
Cabinet Report – Capital Programme 2019/20 to 2023/24, 15th October 2018.
Cabinet Member Report – Oxford Street District, Procurement Strategy, 16th
October 2018.
Cabinet Report – Oxford Street District, Public Consultation on the Draft Place
Strategy and Delivery Plan, 25th October 2018.
Capital Programme – March 2019
Cabinet Report - Oxford Street District – Place Strategy and Delivery Plan
Consultation Results and Updated Strategy – 25th February 2019
Cabinet Report - Oxford Street District – Business Case and Investment Approval,
9th April 2019
Oxford Street District Framework – February 2021
Cabinet Member Report - Marble Arch Mound - Design, commission, construction
and operation of the showcase event – 22 March 2021
For further information regarding this report please contact the Oxford Street District

Page 26

Page 27

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5

Cabinet Report
Meeting or Decision Maker:

Cabinet

Lead Member:

Cllr Tim Barnes, Cabinet Member for Young People and
Learning

Date:

19th April 2021

Classification:

General Release

Title:

Children’s Services Update on Key Issues and
Developments over the past 12 months.

Wards Affected:

All

City for All Summary

The main focus of this report is activity and progress on
children’s services commitments set out under the Vibrant
Communities Strand of City for All.

Key Decision:

No decision is required.

Financial Summary:

n/a

Report of:

Sarah Newman, Executive Director, Bi-Borough Children’s
Services, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea and the
City of Westminster
Contact Details: snewman@westminster.gov.uk

Executive Summary
The purpose of this report is to inform Members of recent practice developments in Children’s
Services and to update Members on progress of important current projects. In our Children
and Young People’s Plan (2019-2022), we have articulated our three-year priorities which
are aligned with the City for All commitments.
The report covers the key issues and developments over the last 12 months in Children’s
Services. It sets out what we have done, what we have achieved for Westminster children
and families and up and coming challenges.

1

Page 29

If you have any queries about this Report or wish to inspect any of the
Background Papers please contact:
Elitsa Zhugleva, Senior Strategy, Partnerships and Policy Officer, Strategy and
Business Intelligence, Bi-Borough Children’s Services

BACKGROUND PAPERS: None.

2

Page 30

Children’s Services Update on Key Issues and
Developments
Page 31

Actions taken to safeguard children and young people,
and support high quality education for all to deliver
Vibrant Communities
Cabinet, 19 April 2021

What we said:

Page 32

In City for All we committed to:

In our Children and Young People’s Plan we set our
priorities to:

✓ Keeping children at the centre of
everything we do

✓ Improve the positive impact of practice and further
developing its evidence-base..

✓ Transforming our Pre-Birth to Five
programme

✓ Continue to deliver, implement and develop our
‘Local Offers’ that improve outcomes for children and
young people leaving care and for 0 to 25-year olds
with SEND.

✓ Ensuring all our children can access our
excellent, diverse and inclusive schools

✓ Ensure children and families can access help early

✓ Ensuring our offer is effective in
engaging young people in positive
activities

✓ Support all children and young people so that they
can move successfully into adulthood.

✓ Improve our local offer for children with
special needs or disabilities

✓ Ensure our work is shaped and influenced by the
views of children and young people.

✓ Provide services that enhance and
support EWMH

✓ Maintain excellence in schools and improve access
and support for children and young people who need
help to thrive.

This presentation sets out what we said, did and continue to do to deliver these
commitments and priorities over last twelve months

Page 33

Key
Highlights
last 12
months

•

Distributed the DWP Covid Winter Grant of £1.032m to fund
food and hardship needs of Westminster families.

•

Delivered 5249 digital devices to ensure those who needed
them most remained connected and able to learn.

•

Continued face to face social work throughout the pandemic
271 care leavers, 194 looked after children, 45 child on a child
protection plan and 590 Children in Need were all contacted at
least every 4 weeks.

•

Placement stability has improved over the last year. In 2020/21
5% of children compared to 11% in the previous year had three
or more placements and 83% of children have been in the same
placement for more than 2.5 years compared to 71 in 201/20.

•

Made best use of digital including transferring parenting
support to digital platforms. We had 159 digital participants
during 2020/21.

•

Contacted all new mothers and only one of a few areas using
digital platforms for the healthy child programme.

•

Primary schools became hub and we introduced a recovery
curriculum following first lock down.

•

Mapped the emotional wellbeing and mental health offer
across all our schools and developed and distributed a range of
resources for nurseries and schools to support the emotional
wellbeing and mental health of pupils, as part of a recovery
curriculum.

•

Moved the Libraries events programme online hosting 242
events with 20,878 attendees. Supported digital inclusion
throughout lockdown with over 300 unique visitors per library
using the PCs.

What we did:
Maintained excellence in
schools and improve access and
support for children and young
people who need help to enable
them to access high quality
education and training and
move into work.

Page 34

•

We ensured digital access for vulnerable families prior to national offer : More than 5249 laptops
were delivered to children via Westminster schools. This includes devices funded by the Council,
refurbished and donated by WCC and ordered from the DfE

•

In September, we set up a Diversity and Equality working group which is attended by Schools and
LA staff. This is underpinned by two working groups; the Curriculum working group and a
Professional Development working group. Funding has been made available to allow schools to
release staff to attend these groups and related training such as the EDI masterclasses for school
leadership teams.

•

Diversity and Equality training is also available to school governors and we are making links with
the Black Governors Association to increase diversity and representation. As part of our enhanced
governor training programme offered to all governors within our schools, we provide financial
training to ensure that there is a financial grip across the schools system.

•

We’ve engaged independent expert advice through ISOS to work with us on the issue of falling
rolls engaging positively with all schools and the diocese. Westminster is one of only a few local
authorities with no overspend in the high needs block due to careful planning of SEND places and
a reflection of our SEND strategy.

•

Distributed a recovery curriculum to help children return to school after the first lockdown and in
the second lockdown issued guidance to parents for where children were working from home.
Increased frequency of meetings with heads teachers and ensured they received public health and
health and safety updates – at a time of multiple and rapidly evolving guidance from government.

•

During reopening of schools to all pupils at the start of 2020/2021 academic year, Family
Navigators offered support to parents concerned about children returning to school. This informal
intervention was well received by schools and 15 out of 35 families responded positively by sending
children back to school. The work will be launched again in Summer Term to encourage and
promote attendance before considering challenge and enforcement.

What we
did:
Page 35

Improved the positive
impact of practice and
further develop its
evidence-base to deliver
better outcomes for
children and young
people.

The Children’s Social Care Innovation Programme Report (September
2020) and Kantar and Tilda Goldberg Centre highlighted the excellent
work Children’s Services has achieved in our commitment to Systemic
Practice.
•
Evidence of sustainable improvement of outcomes for children
and young people.
•
A larger reduction in the rate of child protection plans (18.5 fewer
per 10,000 children) compared to a comparison group of similar
local authorities (7.6 fewer per 10,000 children).
•
A reduction in the rate of child in need plans (of 75.8 fewer per
10,000 children) compared to an increase among the comparison
group of similar local authorities
•
for every £1 spent, approximately £1.89 was saved due to the
embedding of systemic practice.
•
“Families interviewed had positive feedback on their experience
with their social worker, saying it was a collaborative process and
had helped to strengthen family relationships and recognise their
family’s inherent strengths to bring about change”.
•
“at a practice level, in supervision and in direct work with families,
there was evidence of a strengths-based, systemically informed
approach and practice was generally of a high quality”

What we
did:
Page 36

•

Throughout the crisis, our SEND Local Offer websites have
acted as a hub of information for families and professionals,
incl. staff from our local schools.

•

Changed the delivery model of our short breaks offer to
extend support children with disabilities.

•

Set up a ‘Virtual SENCO Forum’ for all schools across that
enabled us to maintain regular communication with
schools.

•

Westminster Family Hubs: GPs and council work together
to deliver a strong child health system.

•

Westminster Guardians: revised corporate parenting
strategy with updated action plan

Continued to deliver,
implement and develop •
our ‘Local Offers’ that
improve outcomes for
children and young
people leaving care and
for 0 to 25-year olds with •
SEND.

We recognise the emotional, economic, and behavioural
impact the Covid-19 will have had on children in care and
care leavers and we continue to support them to engage in
education, employment, and training and have a voice in
decisions that affect their lives.

Libraries introduced a programme of regular online after
school activities to support literacy and learning including
Tuesday Book Group, Thursday Get Creative sessions and
Friday Club with an average of 15 children attending every
week including several SEN children.
• Parents told Ofsted that the special schools in Westminster
had helped their children to be “more confident,
independent and happier.”
• Our local offer survey shows that 77% of users found the site
to be up-to-date, 71% of users found it to be useful and 90%
found it to be understandable.

•

•

What we
did:
Page 37

Ensured children and
families can access help
early and provide
services that enable
children to have the
best start in life.

•

•

•

•

We continue to develop our Family Hubs and were
able to offer a holistic approach to supporting
families during the pandemic. Westminster
participated in a ministerial event to launch
national family hubs.
During lockdown we made sure we contacted
every new mother, sending out new birth packs
and ensuring they have a link worker to monitor
their wellbeing.
Non Violence Resistance is just one of the
parenting courses being delivered through the
Family Hubs which continued during the
pandemic. NVR helps parents and carers
overcome their sense of helplessness and develop
strategies to manage behaviours. 43 parents
attended.
Family Navigators are an integral part of our
Family Hubs. There are now 5 Family Navigators
who have worked with 200 families over the past
year acting as a bridge for universal services such
as schools and GP practices into the wider services
of the Family Hub.
One of the only areas in the country to introduce
online support tools that ensure appropriate
development reviews are based on identified
need.
A new delivery model for the Healthy Child
Programme will be in place by Summer 2022
following
re-procurement and Early Help
redesign.

•

What we
did:

•
•

Page 38

Supported all children and
young people so that they
can move successfully into
adulthood including those
at risk of harm,
exploitation and/or
criminalisation, serious
youth violence and new
and emerging risks.

•

•

•

Collaborative trauma informed, and area-based
approach to preventing school exclusions (16 schools
participating in a pilot, 83 teachers trained, 59 young
people on the programme – None have been
permanently excluded.
Local networks with employers, education and
learning facilities and sport events.
Well-established Vulnerable Children’s collaborative
continues to drive forward improvements in the
system and unpick individual cases.
As the risks of gang affiliation rise, the IGXU ETE
Coaches continue to ensure and young people have
access to the latest opportunities; by brokering new
vacancies, forging partnerships, and working
creatively – 35 young people engaging fully with
education, training and employment outcomes.
Willmott Dixon partnership with YOT, 15 trained
mentors with trauma informed training worked with 9
young people – one more than the target - to develop
their potential.
Analysis of serious youth violence shows reducing
trend in under 18s. Over the last two year period the
number of First Time Entrants to the criminal justice
system decreased from 42 to 37, a decrease of 12%.

What we did:
Page 39

Ensured our work is shaped and
influenced by the views of
children and young people their
parents and/or carers.

•

Strengthened the voice of the child and
embedded service user feedback and reflective
practice into everything we do

•

Co-production with parents/carers to update
our SEND Strategy

•

New assessment YOT pilot to increase CYP
engagement

•

Contacted 500 children across Bi-Borough to
understand their views, both positive and
negative, about returning to school.

•

80% of children report that they “feel listened
to regarding their health needs. (Westminster
Guardians Annual Survey)

•

Audits and service user feedback indicate that
children have been actively involved in
assessments, planning meetings, and codesign of service interventions: 72.3 % (181) of
all monthly audits in WCC show that ‘the voice
of the child’ is clearly evidenced in the file.

•

Creative collaborative digital exhibition of
children’s experiences during lockdowns

What we did:
In our libraries and registration services

Page 40

Registration services
• We conducted 1056 weddings and civil partnerships during 20/21 and
we currently have 2034 booked for 21/22- 1543 of those at OMTH.
• Westminster Registration Service has supported the families of 1952
Westminster residents who have sadly passed away over the last year.
This includes 490 residents whose death has been covid related.
• Since the birth registration service resumed on 01st July 2020 the
Westminster Registration Service has welcomed 4’956 families in
registering births within the district of Westminster
Libraries
• Introduced Libby a new eResources supplier with ten times the amount
of eBooks, more than 3,000 additional eMagazine titles, three times
the amount of eAudio titles
• Continued to offer the Home Library Service throughout lockdown,
supporting our most vulnerable residents, piloting tablet loans to
enhance the service and extending the homes service to children and
families through free book packs
• Supported the Thriving Economy through a soon to launch business
library at Victoria Library, offering a range of business information,
resources and events and affordable co-working space to hire for new
and small businesses
• Archives secured a £10,000 National Archives grant to employ a
consultant to scope WCC businesses in financial difficulties resulting
from the pandemic and preserve their archives
• Archives KS2 project with MOD theatre suitable for Y4-6 and focusses
on the year 1066 and how it compares to 2020. to address mental
health issues.

Up and coming challenges
•

In Westminster published permanent and fixed term exclusion rates are above national and inner
London averages. We will publish an inclusion strategy this month- to keep these young people in school,
intervening and providing support early.

•

Serious youth violence, gang activity continues to be a concern in Westminster. We are seeking an overall
outstanding judgement when our youth offending services are inspected we are focusing now on improving
information sharing betweenYOT and SEND services.

•

•

Page 41
•

•

•

Young people in Westminster have been significantly and disproportionately affected by the pandemic –
socially, emotionally and economically. The Cabinet Member is leading collaborative cross-council work
to understand the underlying and influencing factors from sectoral challenges to furlough and
redundancy – and what it means for our young people.
There has been a significant and negative mental health impact on young people due to COVID-19. A
survey of young people by Young Minds indicates that 83% of young people say their mental health has
worsened. We are developing a wellbeing hub for 16 to 25 year olds to strengthen mental health and
employability for young people and support transitions into adulthood based on a successful model from
Camden with strong outcomes.
We are in the early stages of updating our SEND Strategy. We are consulting widely at the moment and
over the course of the next few months we will be engaging with a wide group of stakeholders to shape,
inform and co-produce ambitious priorities for the 2021-2024 strategy.
Disadvantaged families have suffered disproportionately through the pandemic. Government has
allocated funding of £709k and throughout the holiday periods – Easter, Summer and Christmas holiday
- this year we will be developing and providing a programme of free holiday activity for children and
young people eligible for free school meals which includes both nutritious food as well as education on
nutrition.
We will need to continue to listen to children and young people as we recover and reopen the city. The
Youth Council continues to grow in confidence and is helping shape the councils offer to young people as
is The children in care council which also supports council recruitment. A Tuesday Group will continue to
meet weekly with older children in care and care leavers, providing a safe space to develop life skills,
social networks, supporting independence and emotional well-being.

CITY FOR ALL – Vibrant Communities: Priorities and milestones
Legend

Complete

In Progress

Overdue

PRIORITY UPDATE

Not Started

Page 42

Keep children at the
centre of everything
we do – They are
our future

Ensure all family
hubs are up and
running

Employ a Financial
Capability Officer to
work with families in
financial difficulty

Report on Family
Navigator employed
to work in NE Family
Hub

Roll-out the Church
Street Transitions
Project

Transform our prebirth to five
programme

Finalisation of the
pre-birth to five
strategy and
workstreams

Hear from staff and
the community at
engagement
workshops

Establish the
transformation plan

Implement changes
to universal health
visiting delivery
model

The re-designed prebirth to five pathway
is in place

Transformation plans, workstreams and strategies agreed
following community engagement.
We are currently working with CLCH partners to
modernise and digitise our Health visiting offer

Ensure all our
children can access
our excellent,
diverse and inclusive
schools

Learn from our
school inclusion pilot
to strengthen our
response across the
partnership

Develop our
inclusion strategy

Launch inclusion
strategy

Inclusion Strategy Priority action
planning

Launch Inclusion
Strategy action plans

Learning from the inclusion pilot has informed our draft
strategy.
The inclusion strategy is now being launched and will be
ratified by end of March 2021

Ensure our offer is
effective in
engaging young
people in positive
activities

Pilot a new systemic
assessment to
replace ASSET PLUS

Improve information
sharing between
YOT and SEND

Respond to the
recommendations
from the JSNA Youth
Offending Report

Youth Offending
Team inspection
planning undertaken

Improve our local
offer for children
with special needs
or disabilities

Develop our
approaches to
personalisation

Listen to families and
develop our
improved Short
Break Service

Review and develop
our EHC needs
assessment and
review process

Expand our offer
from adult training
providers

Provide services
that enhance and
support EWMH

Stakeholder
engagement,
planning and
evaluation for the 1824 service pilot

Conclude contractual
arrangements for
‘Bridging the Gap’

Develop proposal for
a two-year pilot of
new 18-24 service

Family hubs are making great progress
A family navigator is currently working with asylum
seekers and linked in with charities and local support
networks

Working with MOJ and DfE, dedicated board in place for
all YOS cases, received Quality Mark from youth justice
and working towards lead quality KITE mark.
JSNA group recommendations complete and Inspection
readiness underway.
Deliver Housing
Strategy and
Transforming Care
Action Plan

Rules, guidance and personal budgets updated.
Short breaks reorganising with launch in Jan 2021.
EHC reviewed in line with shared principles.
Whole life pathways being developed with adult social
care and training.
Inaugural working group completed Dec 2020 and
development of business case and commissioning
strategy commenced with input from providers and
service users.
Contractors contacted for ‘bridging the gap’.

